

Date: 8.3.2025
Time: 12:00 hrs
Subject: BULLETIN NO: 1
Document No: 1.1
From: The Clerk of the Course

To: All competitors / crew members

Number of pages: 4 Attachments 1 (4 pages)

APPROVED BY THE FIA - 8.3.2025

Amendments to the Supplementary Regulations of the Rally

1. INTRODUCTION

1.3 Overall SS distance and total distance of the itinerary

SS distance : ~~384.86 km~~ **383.10 km**

Total distance : ~~1403.63 km~~ **1381.92 km**

2. ORGANISATION

2.1 FIA titles for which the rally counts

FIA ARC Masters ~~Cup~~ **Championship** for Drivers ~~and Co-Drivers~~

2.8 Senior Officials

Deputy Clerk of Course ~~Mr. Gurvi Bala (TAN)~~

Deputy Chief Rescue Officer **Mr. Suleiman Munyua**

Chief Results Officer ~~Mr. Darash Patel~~ **Ms. Jeanette Awang'**

Add:

Rally Control Manager Mr. Mwaura Njuguna

Assistant Chief Safety Officer Mr. Fabrice Nyiridandi (RWA)

Assistant Chief Results Officer Ms. Anne Waweru

3. PROGRAMME

3.2 Schedule during the rally week

Sunday 16 March		
13:00 - 17:00	Media Accreditation (National Media and Recce) - no tabard or tabard media stickers are handed out	Reception Desk, KICC, Nairobi
19:00	Wildlife safety wilderness briefing, mandatory for all Crews	Pavilion, Service Park
~ 19:15	Drivers' safety briefing mandatory for all Drivers and Co-drivers participating in their first WRC event in 2025	Pavilion, Service Park
~ 19:30	WRC Promoter driver and co-driver photoshoot. Helmets and overalls required (mandatory for all Priority crews participating in their first WRC competition in 2025)	Pavilion, Service Park
Wednesday 19 March		
19:00 - 19:30	Welcome Dinner with selected crews: one P1 crew per Manufacturer, 20, 24, 25, 26, 28, 29, 30, 37, 39, 40, 41 and 42	Safari Park Hotel, Nairobi. Jambo Conference Room

Thursday 20 March		
10:15 - 10:35	Autograph session for selected crews all P1 crews	KICC, Nairobi
10:40	WRC Family photo for selected P1 and local crews	KICC, Nairobi
11:26	Start of Section 1	KICC, Nairobi - City Hall Way
15:20	Meet the Crews (selected crews) Selected P1 & P2 drivers and 26, 28, 29, 30, 37, 40 and Autograph Session, all crews (at the Holding Area)	Safari Center Naivasha

3.3 Opening hours – HQ and Media

		Rally Office	Media Centre	Media Accreditation
Sunday	16 March	09:00 - 18:00	-	13:00 - 17:00 (Nairobi)
Monday	17 March	07:00 - 20:00	-	09:00 - 18:30
Tuesday	18 March	06:00 - 20:00	14:00 - 19:00	09:00 - 18:30
Wednesday	19 March	06:00 - 18:30	07:00 - 20:00	07:00 - 19:00
Thursday	20 March	06:00 - 19:30	08:00 - 20:00	08:00 - 19:00
Friday	21 March	07:00 - 21:00	06:00 - 20:00	open by request only
Saturday	22 March	06:00 - 22:00	07:00 - 21:30	-
Sunday	23 March	06:00 - 20:00	06:00 - 20:00	-
Monday	24 March	09:00 - 13:00	-	-

6. ADVERTISING AND IDENTIFICATION

6.2 The organiser's advertising

The organiser's advertising on the doors, roof and rear window plates are as stipulated in Appendix 4 of these Supplementary Regulations. ~~The organiser's optional advertising under the front door panels will be announced in a Bulletin.~~ **There is no organiser's optional advertising.**

9. RECONNAISSANCE

9.4.3 Reconnaissance of SSS 1

Schedule on Thursday, 20 March:

Time	Cars	Time	Cars	Time	Cars	Time	Cars
07:30	30, 29	08:18	5, 55	09:06	35, 36	09:54	48, 49
07:38	28, 26	08:26	16, 18	09:14	37, 38		
07:46	21, 25	08:34	8, 69	09:22	39, 40		
07:54	24, 23	08:42	1, 33	09:30	41, 42		
08:02	22, 20	08:50	27, 31	09:38	43, 44		
08:10	9, 13	08:58	32, 34	09:46	45, 47		

Non-priority crews, who have not registered for the Shakedown, can carry out reconnaissance on SSS 1 alternatively on Wednesday, 19 March at 15:00 - 16:30.

10. ADMINISTRATIVE CHECKS

10.2 Timetable

On Sunday, 16 March at the Rally Office, according to the individual times as follows:

Time	Competitors No.	Time	Competitors No.
10:00 - 10:20	20, 21, 22	12:00 - 12:20	42, 43, 44
10:20 - 10:40	23, 24, 25	12:20 - 12:40	45, 47
10:40 - 11:00	27, 29, 31	12:40 - 13:00	48, 49
11:00 - 11:20	26, 28, 30, 37	13:00 - 13:20	5, 18, 33, 69
11:20 - 11:40	34, 35, 36	13:20 - 13:40	1, 8, 16
11:40 - 12:00	38, 39, 40, 41	13:40 - 14:00	9, 13, 55, 32

11. SCRUTINEERING

11.1 Venue and Timetable

Sealing for Rally1 cars on Tuesday, 18 March 2025 at the Service Park:

	Car numbers	Time	
TOYOTA GAZOO RACING WRT & TOYOTA GAZOO RACING WRT2	18, 33, 69 & 5	08:00	09:00
HYUNDAI SHELL MOBIS WORLD RALLY TEAM	1, 8, 16	09:00	09:45
M-SPORT FORD WORLD RALLY TEAM	9, 13, 55	09:45	10:30

Scales are available for Rally1 cars at the Scrutineering Area at 10:30 - 11:00.

Scrutineering for all other competitors on Tuesday, 18 March at the Service Park Scrutineering Area as follows:

Time	Cars No.	Time	Cars No.
13:00 - 13:30	20, 23, 42	15:30 - 16:00	34, 35, 47
13:30 - 14:00	24, 25, 43	16:00 - 16:30	36, 28, 48
14:00 - 14:30	21, 22, 44	17:00 - 17:30	30, 32, 49
14:30 - 15:00	26, 27, 45	17:30 - 18:00	37, 38, 41
15:00 - 15:30	29, 31	18:00 - 18:30	39, 40

12. OTHER PROCEDURES

12.7 Start order for the rally (add)

Start order for SSS 1 Kasarani may differ from the Start List for Section 1. Start order will be changed again after SSS 1 Kasarani at the Holding Area TC1A/1B.

12.19 Promotional activities with drivers

All crews are required to stop for 10 minutes to greet spectators and sign autographs at the following Passage Controls indicated in the road books: ~~PC1 (Section 1)~~, ~~PC21~~ (Section 4) and ~~PC32~~ (Section 5).

...

14. PRIZES

FIA ARC Masters ~~Cup~~ Championship

APPENDIX 1 - ITINERARY

Revised Itinerary in Attachment 1.



George Mwangi
Clerk of the Course

Bulletin 1, Attachment 1

ver 2.3 070325						
Shakedown				Wednesday 19 March 2025		
TC SS	Location	SS Dist. Km.	Liaison Dist. Km.	Total Dist. Km.	Target Time	First Car Due
	Service Park - WRTI Naivasha					
TC SD	Shakedown Start	-	43,66	43,66		9:56
SD	Shakedown Sleeping Warrior SEZ	5,16	-	-		10:01
	Service Park - WRTI Naivasha	-	41,18	46,34	P1 & Invited	10:01 / 12:00
					All Priority	12:01 / 13:00
					P2, P3, non-priority	13:01 / 14:00
Wednesday Totals		5,16	84,84	90,00		
Start - Section 1				Thursday 20 March 2025		
0	Start - KICC, Nairobi					11:26
1*		-	19,29	19,29	0:40	12:06
SSS 1	Super Special Kasarani	4,76	-	-		13:05
1A*	Holding IN - Safari Centre Naivasha		93,51	98,27	2:15	15:20
1B	Holding OUT	-	-	-	1:00	16:20
2			12,70	12,70	0:20	16:40
SS 2	Mzabibu 1	8,27				16:43
2A*	Parc Fermé In - WRTI Naivasha	-	11,16	19,43	0:30	17:13
Thursday Totals		13,03	136,66	149,69		
					Sunrise - Naivasha	06:38
					Sunset - Naivasha	18:45
* Early check-in permitted						

Bulletin 1, Attachment 1

ver 2.3 070325

Re-start - Sections 2 & 3
Friday 21 March 2025

TC SS	Location	SS Dist. Km.	Liaison Dist. Km.	Total Dist. Km.	Target Time	First Car Due
2B		-	-	-		6:15
	Service A (WRTI Naivasha)	-	-	-	0:15	
2C	Service - Out	-	-	-		6:30
RZ 1	Refuel (FIA Fuel) - WRTI Naivasha <i>Distance to next refuel</i>	- (50,51)	(0,25) (96,68)	- (147,19)		
3		-	40,91	40,91	0:55	7:25
SS 3	Camp Moran 1	31,40	-	-		7:28
4		-	34,25	65,65	1:25	8:53
SS 4	Loldia 1	19,11				8:56
RZ 2	Refuel (FIA Fuel) - Oserian Twin Lakes <i>Distance to next refuel</i>	- (28,28)	(21,77) (51,16)	- (79,44)		
5			34,66	53,77	1:10	10:06
SS5	Kengen Geothermal 1	13,18				10:09
6			25,57	38,75	0:50	10:59
SS6	Kedong 1	15,10				11:02
6A	Regroup In & Technical Zone In		12,45	27,55	0:35	11:37
6B	Regroup Out & Service - In	-	-	-	0:30	12:07
	Service B (WRTI Naivasha)	(78,79)	(147,84)	(226,63)	0:40	
6C	Service Out		-	-		12:47
RZ 3	Refuel (FIA Fuel) - WRTI Naivasha <i>Distance to next refuel</i>	- (50,51)	(0,25) (96,68)	- (147,19)		
7		-	40,91	40,91	0:55	13:42
SS 7	Camp Moran 2	31,40	-	-		13:45
8		-	34,25	65,65	1:25	15:10
SS 8	Loldia 2	19,11	-	-		15:13
RZ 4	Refuel (FIA Fuel) - Oserian Twin Lakes <i>Distance to next refuel</i>	- (28,28)	(21,77) (51,16)	- (79,44)		
9			34,66	53,77	1:10	16:23
SS9	Kengen Geothermal 2	13,18				16:26
10			25,57	38,75	0:50	17:16
SS10	Kedong 2	15,10				17:19
10A	Parc Fermé & Technical Zone - In	-	12,45	27,55	0:35	17:54
10B	Parc Fermé Out - Flexi Service - In	-	-	-	0:10	18:04
	Flexi-Service C (WRTI Naivasha)	(78,79)	(147,84)	(226,63)	0:45	
10C*	Flexi Service Out - Parc Fermé - In		-	-		(18:49)
	<i>All cars (except P1 cars and restarting cars) must be returned to Parc Fermé no later than</i>					21:00
Friday Totals		157,58	295,68	453,26		

* Early check-in permitted

Sunrise - Naivasha	06:38
Sunset - Naivasha	18:45

Section 2

Section 3

Bulletin 1, Attachment 1

ver 2.3 070325

Re-start - Sections 4 & 5

Saturday 22 March 2025

TC SS	Location	SS Dist. Km.	Liaison Dist. Km.	Total Dist. Km.	Target Time	First Car Due
10D	Parc Fermé - Out	-	-	-		7:09
RZ	Refuel (FIA Fuel) - WRTI Naivasha	-	(0,25)			
5	Distance to next refuel	(44,28)	(69,48)	(113,76)		
11		-	63,80	63,80	1:23	8:32
SS 11	Sleeping Warrior 1	26,97	-	-		8:35
12		-	2,78	29,75	0:51	9:26
SS 12	Elmenteita 1 Live TV	17,31	-	-		9:35
RZ	Refuel (FIA Fuel) - Soysambu	-	(3,15)			
6	Distance to next refuel	(28,97)	(64,09)	(93,06)		
13		-	4,36	21,67	0:55	10:30
SS 13	Soysambu 1	28,97	-	-		10:33
PC1	Passage Control 1 - Mzabibu Rally Village		(51,59)			
13A	Regroup & Technical Zone - In	-	62,63	91,60	2:05	12:38
13B	Regroup Out & Service - In	-	-	-	0:21	12:59
	Service D (WRTI Naivasha)	(73,25)	(133,57)	(206,82)	0:40	
13C	Service - Out	-	-	-		13:39
RZ	Refuel (FIA Fuel) - WRTI Naivasha	-	(0,25)			
7	Distance to next refuel	(44,28)	(69,48)	(113,76)		
14		-	63,80	63,80	1:23	15:02
SS 14	Sleeping Warrior 2	26,97	-	-		15:05
15		-	2,78	29,75	0:51	15:56
SS 15	Elmenteita 2 Live TV	17,31	-	-		16:05
RZ	Refuel (FIA Fuel) - Soysambu	-	(3,15)			
8	Distance to next refuel	(28,97)	(64,09)	(93,06)		
16		-	4,36	21,67	0:55	17:00
SS 16	Soysambu 2	28,97	-	-		17:03
PC2	Passage Control 2 - Mzabibu Rally Village		(51,59)			
16A	Parc Fermé & Technical Zone - In	-	62,63	91,60	2:05	19:08
16B	Parc Fermé Out - Flexi Service - In	-	-	-	0:10	19:18
	Flexi-Service E (WRTI Naivasha)	(73,25)	(133,57)	(206,82)	0:45	
16C*	Flexi Service Out - Parc Fermé - In		-	-		(20:03)
	All cars (except P1 cars and restarting cars) must be returned to Parc Fermé no later than					22:15
Saturday Totals		146,50	267,14	413,64		

* Early check-in permitted

Sunrise - Naivasha	06:38
Sunset - Naivasha	18:45

Section 4

Section 5

Bulletin 1, Attachment 1

ver 2.3 070325

Re-start - Sections 6, 7 & 8
Sunday 23 March 2025

TC SS	Location	SS Dist. Km.	Liaison Dist. Km.	Total Dist. Km.	Target Time	First Car Due
16D	Parc Fermé - Out	-	-	-		6:15
RZ	Refuel (FIA Fuel) - WRTI Naivasha	-	(0,25)	-		
9	Distance to next refuel	(26,60)	(57,43)	(84,03)		
17		-	11,33	11,33	0:24	6:39
SS 17	Mzabibu 2	8,27	-	-		6:42
18		-	41,47	49,74	1:08	7:50
SS 18	Oserengoni 1	18,33	-	-		7:53
RZ	Refuel (FIA Fuel) - Oserian Twin Lakes	-	(4,88)	-		
10	Distance to next refuel	(10,53)	(72,56)	(83,09)		
19		-	31,28	49,61	1:02	8:55
SS 19	Hell's Gate 1 Live TV	10,53	-	-		9:05
19A	Regroup & Technical Zone - In	-	45,91	56,44	1:07	10:12
19B	Regroup Out & Service - In	-	-	-	0:06	10:18
Service F (WRTI Naivasha)		(37,13)	(129,99)	(167,12)	0:15	
19C	Service - Out	-	-	-		10:33
RZ	Refuel (FIA Fuel) - WRTI Naivasha	-	(0,25)	-		
11	Distance to next refuel	(18,33)	(56,04)	(74,37)		
20		-	51,41	51,41	1:20	11:53
SS 20	Oserengoni 2	18,33	-	-		11:56
RZ	Refuel (FIA Fuel) - Oserian Twin Lakes	-	(4,88)	-		
12	Distance to next refuel	(10,53)	(113,06)	(123,59)		
20A	Regroup & Technical Zone - In	-	33,74	52,07	1:09	13:05
20B	Regroup Out	-	-	-	0:50	13:55
21		-	10,92	10,92	0:17	14:12
SS 21	Hell's Gate 2 - Wolf Power Stage	10,53	-	-		14:15
21A*	Podium Holding Area	-	0,56	11,09	0:15	14:30
	PODIUM	-	-	-		15:30
21B*	Podium Holding Area OUT	-	-	-		
21C*	Technical Zone / Parc Fermé - In	-	72,72	72,72	1:35	(17:05)
* Early check-in permitted						
Sunday Totals		65,99	299,34	365,33		

Sunrise - Naivasha	06:38
Sunset - Naivasha	18:45

TOTALS OF THE RALLY					
	SS	Liaison	Total		%
THU 20 – Section 1 – 2 SS	13,03	136,66	149,69	% of Special stages	8,7%
FRI 21 – Sections 2 & 3 – 8 SS	157,58	295,68	453,26		34,8%
SAT 22 – Sections 4 & 5 – 6 SS	146,50	267,14	413,64		35,4%
SUN 23 – Sections 6, 7 & 8 – 5 SS	65,99	299,34	365,33		18,1%
Total - 21 SS	383,10	998,82	1 381,92		27,7%